

April 2016

Refugee Documentation Centre

Country Information Pack

ALBANIA

Disclaimer

Country Information Packs (CIPs) are prepared by researching publicly accessible information currently available to the Refugee Documentation Centre within time constraints. CIPs contain a selection of representative links to sources under a number of categories for use as Country of Origin Information. Links are correct at the time of publication. Please note that CIPs are not, and do not purport to be, exhaustive with regard to conditions in the countries surveyed or conclusive as to the merit of any particular claim to refugee status or protection. The General Human Rights Reports category contains links to information which may be useful for a number of the other categories.

Contents

1.	Nationality/Citizenship/Residency	2
2.	Maps	3
3.	Local Information/Languages/Culture/Customs	3
4.	General Human Rights Reports	4
5.	Conflict/Security	5
6.	Minorities/Ethnic Groups	6
7.	Religion/Cults	8
8.	Political	9
9.	State Protection (For State Protection of Particular Groups, see the relevant	
sect	tion)	. 10
10.	Government/Civil Society/Legal Systems	.10
11.	Press/Media/Freedom of Expression	.11
12.	Women/Children/Family	.11
13.	Prisons/Detention/Torture/Slavery	.12
14.	Crime/Corruption	.13
15.	Education	.14
16.	Health	.14
17.	Asylum seekers/IDPs/Internal Flight	.14

List of Documents

1. Nationality/Citizenship/Residency

Republic of Albania (21 January 1999) Law No. 8442 on Some Changes in Law No. 8389 dated 5 August 1998 "On Albanian Citizenship" http://www.refworld.org/docid/3f4e16744.html

Republic of Albania (21 October 1998) *Albanian Constitution* (as amended 21 April 2008)

http://www.refworld.org/docid/4c1f68912.html

Republic of Albania (6 September 1998) Law No. 8389, Law on Albanian Citizenship

http://www.refworld.org/docid/3ae6b5c10.html

Republic of Albania (12 June 1990) *Decree No. 7393, on the Issue of Passports and Visas (last amended 1993)* http://www.refworld.org/docid/3ae6b54d4.html

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (9 June 2015) Albania: The biometric passport; its appearance and biometric data stored on it; requirements and procedures to obtain a biometric passport from within Albania; whether it can be replaced or renewed from abroad (2012-June 2015) ALB105185.E

http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=455926&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (7 February 2014) ALB104753.E - Albania: Birth certificates, including appearance, details of information included; whether the certificate is a standard form used nationally or whether it varies depending on region or city; whether the certificate is used for other official documents; authorities responsible for issuing birth certificates, including any identifying codes that would appear on the certificate http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=455115&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (1 October 2008) *ALB102933.E Albania: Whether a new national identity card has been issued; whether the* leternjoftim *is a common identity document used in the country* http://www.unhcr.org/refworld/docid/492ac7c6c.html

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (10 October 2007) ALB102520.E - Albania: Procedure to obtain a passport from outside the country; type of identification needed to apply for a passport overseas; whether the policy for obtaining a passport has changed

http://www.unhcr.org/refworld/docid/474e89521a.html

Refugees International (11 March 2009) Nationality Rights for All: A Progress Report and Global Survey on Statelessness

http://www.unhcr.org/refworld/pdfid/49be193f2.pdf

UN Committee on the rights of the Child (8 December 2011) Consideration of the reports submitted by States parties under article 44 of the Convention: Combined second, third and fourth periodic reports of States parties due in 2009 - Albania

http://www.unhcr.org/refworld/pdfid/4ef1c6992.pdf

United States Embassy in Albania (Undated) *Entering and Residing in Albania* http://tirana.usembassy.gov/residency.html

2. Maps

Google Maps (Undated) Albania

https://www.google.ie/maps/place/Albania/@41.1529058,20.1605718,7z/data =!3m1!4b1!4m2!3m1!1s0x13453bf3bd274c2d:0x77ce589d6983bee?hl=en

Perry-Castañeda Library Map Collection (2012) *Albania Maps* http://www.lib.utexas.edu/maps/albania.html

UN Cartographic Section (June 2004) *Map of Albania* http://www.refworld.org/docid/460793d02.html

UNHCR (2000) *Map of Albania* http://www.unhcr.org/publ/PUBL/3dee189b4.pdf

World Atlas (undated) *Map of Albania, World Atlas* http://www.worldatlas.com/webimage/countrys/europe/al.htm

3. Local Information/Languages/Culture/Customs

BBC News (23 February 2016) *Country profile: Albania* http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/world-europe-17679574

Bertelsmann Transformation Index (2016) *Albania Country Report* http://www.bti-

<u>project.org/fileadmin/files/BTI/Downloads/Reports/2016/pdf/BTI_2016_Albania_pdf</u>

CIA (25 February 2016) *The World Factbook: Albania* https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world-factbook/geos/al.html

Department of Foreign Affairs (Ireland) (20 October 2015) Albania – Travel Advice

https://www.dfa.ie/travel/travel-advice/a-z-list-of-countries/albania/

Ethnologue, Languages of the World (Undated) *Languages of Albania* http://www.ethnologue.com/show_country.asp?name=AL

Gov.UK (5 January 2016) *Country Profile: Albania* https://www.gov.uk/foreign-travel-advice/albania

United States Department of State (29 March 2016) *Albania: Country Specific* Information

http://travel.state.gov/content/passports/english/country/albania.html

United States Department of State (11 March 2015) U.S. Relations With Albania

http://www.state.gov/r/pa/ei/bgn/3235.htm

4. General Human Rights Reports

Albanian Helsinki Committee (December 2015) Report on the situation of human rights in Albania for 2015 http://www.ahc.org.al/web/images/Raporte/AL/Report on the human rights.p

Amnesty International (24 February 2016) *Amnesty International Report* 2015/16 – *Albania*

http://www.refworld.org/docid/56d05b7b15.html

Council of Europe: Commissioner for Human Rights (16 January 2014) Report by Nils Muižnieks Commissioner for Human Rights of the Council of Europe following his visit to Albania from 23 to 27 September 2013 http://www.refworld.org/docid/53046b8a4.html

Council of Europe: European Commission Against Racism and Intolerance (ECRI) (9 June 2015) *ECRI Report on Albania (fifth monitoring cycle)* http://www.refworld.org/docid/55b25bb24.html

European Commission (10 November 2015) *Albania Report 2015* http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1226_1447156092_20151110-report-albania.pdf

Freedom House (2 June 2015) *Freedom in the World 2015 – Albania* http://www.refworld.org/docid/556efe275e.html

Freedom House (6 June 2015) *Nations in Transit 2015 - Albania* https://freedomhouse.org/sites/default/files/NIT2015 Albania.pdf

Human Rights Watch (15 April 2009) *UPR submission on Albania* http://www.hrw.org/en/news/2009/04/15/human-rights-watch-upr-submission-albania

International Committee of the Red Cross (ICRC) (9 June 2015) *Annual Report 2014 - Western Balkans (regional)* http://www.refworld.org/docid/558131b02c.html

Social Institutions and Gender Index (2014) Country Profile Albania

http://www.genderindex.org/sites/default/files/datasheets/AL.pdf

United Kingdom Home Office (30 March 2012) Country of Origin Information Report - Albania

http://www.refworld.org/docid/52ab0fd34.html

United States Department of State (13 April 2016) 2015 Country Reports on Human Rights Practices - Albania

http://www.state.gov/j/drl/rls/hrrpt/humanrightsreport/index.htm?year=2015&dlid=252815

5. Conflict/Security

Balkan Insight (25 February 2014) Albanians Fighting Abroad Face 10 Years' Jail

http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/albania-to-jail-citizens-who-fight-abroad

Balkan Insight (15 January 2016) Albanian Activists Accuse Kosovo Police of Abuse

http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/albanians-stopped-in-the-border-to-join-pristina-protests-01-14-2016

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (21 August 2015) *Albania:* Procedures to obtain a police report; whether a police report can be obtained from abroad through a proxy; if so, requirements and procedures (2012-September 2015) ALB105257.E

http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=456075&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (19 February 2015) Albania: Instances of Muslim extremists targeting members of the Albanian military forces, including soldiers who formerly served in Iraq with US peacekeeping forces (2004-February 2015) ALB105082.E

http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=455738&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (28 February 2014) ALB104752.E - Albania: Task force established to investigate falsified attestation letters for blood feuds, including activities and cases investigated; reconciliation groups, including whether any have been investigated for providing false attestation letters (2012-February 2014)

http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=455159&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (20 May 2009) ALB103123.E Albania: Whether health officials at hospitals and clinics are required to report cases of trauma, accidents and injuries to the police; procedures for reporting these cases

http://www.refworld.org/docid/4b20f030c.html

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (14 April 2009) *ALB103111.E Albania: Whether any level of government or the municipality of Vau Dejes maintains a list of existing blood feuds in order to provide financial assistance to those who are unable to leave their homes because of the blood feuds http://www.refworld.org/docid/4b20f02cc.html*

The Jamestown Foundation (15 May 2015) Ethnic Albanian Foreign Fighters and the Islamic State

http://www.jamestown.org/programs/tm/single/?tx_ttnews%5Btt_news%5D=43917#.VkMYDNSvnK4

The Jamestown Foundation (2 October 2015) The Islamic State's Balkan 'Strongholds'

http://www.jamestown.org/single/?tx_ttnews%5Bpointer%5D=1&tx_ttnews%5Btt_news%5D=44446&tx_ttnews%5BbackPid%5D=228&cHash=f8a0b90c08b6fcf81ea54035198eb817#.Vwy-C9ROPK5

Radio Free Europe/Radio Liberty (1 December 2015) Kosovo Albanian arrested on terror charges

http://www.rferl.org/content/kosovo-albanian-arrested-terror-charges-islamic-state/27400156.html

Small Arms Survey (April 2012) Capabilities and Capacities: A Survey of South-east Europe's Demilitarization Infrastructure http://www.smallarmssurvey.org/fileadmin/docs/C-Special-reports/SAS-SR15-South-East-Europe-Demilitarization.pdf

United Nations Committee Against Torture (26 June 2012) Consideration of reports submitted by States parties under article 19 of the Convention Concluding observations of the Committee against Torture – Albania http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1788_1344535791_cat-c-alb-co-2.pdf

United Kingdom Home Office (June 2014) *Country Information and Guidance - Albania: Blood feuds* http://www.refworld.org/docid/53b698e74.html

United States Department of State (19 June 2015) Country Reports on Terrorism 2014 - Albania http://www.refworld.org/docid/5587c75d9.html

War Resisters International (15 May 2005) *World Survey of conscription and conscientious objection to military service, Albania* http://wri-irg.org/programmes/world_survey/country_report/en/Albania

6. Minorities/Ethnic Groups

Amnesty International (1 August 2012) Albania must suspend discriminatory measures against Roma

https://www.amnesty.org/download/Documents/20000/eur110082012en.pdf

Australia: Refugee Review Tribunal (18 August 2010) Albania: 1. Please provide current information on the extent to which gay men in Albania are at risk of violence or other forms of serious harm. 2. Please provide current information on whether the police provide protection to gay men, and if not, whether the reason for this failure of State protection is the police attitude towards gay men or alternatively a lack of resources. 3. Please provide current information on whether there are areas in Albania where a gay man could relocate to remove the risk of serious harm and/or obtain police protection.

http://www.unhcr.org/refworld/docid/4f40d8ea2.html

Balkan Insight (25 March 2013) Albania is Europe's Most Homophobic Country, Survey Says

http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/albania-is-the-most-homophobic-country-in-europe-survey-says

Balkan Insight (18 February 2016) Balkans Told to Stop Forcible Evicting Roma

http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/council-of-europe-slams-balkan-governments-over-roma-evictions-02-17-2016

Council of Europe (10 January 2011) Third Report Submitted by Albania Pursuant to Article 25, Paragraph 1 of the Framework Convention for the Protection of National Minorities

http://www.unhcr.org/refworld/pdfid/4d2ec61b2.pdf

Council of Europe (4 June 2012) Advisory Committee on the Framework Convention for the Protection of National Minorities - Third Opinion on Albania adopted on 23 November 2011

http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1226_1346761232_pdf-3rd-op-albania-en.pdf

European Roma Rights Centre (22 August 2013) Roma Rights 2012: Challenges of Representation: Voice on Roma Politics, Power and Participation

http://www.errc.org/article/roma-rights-2012-challenges-of-representation-voice-on-roma-politics-power-and-participation/4174

European Roma Rights Centre (16 February 2012) Fact Sheet: Roma Rights in Jeopardy

http://www.errc.org/cms/upload/file/factsheet-roma-rights-record.pdf

European Roma Rights Centre (7 February 2012) NGOs Call for End to Forced Evictions of Roma in Freezing Temperatures http://www.errc.org/article/ngos-call-for-end-to-forced-evictions-of-roma-in-freezing-temperatures/3965

Human Rights Watch (26 March 2012) Albania: Reprimand Official for Anti-Gay Remarks

http://www.hrw.org/news/2012/03/26/albania-reprimand-official-anti-gay-remarks

Human Rights Watch (16 February 2010) *Albania: Anti-Bias Law a Victory* http://www.hrw.org/news/2010/02/16/albania-anti-bias-law-victory

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (7 February 2014) ALB104751.E - Albania: Commissioner for Protection from Discrimination, including complaints received based on discrimination against sexual minorities and actions taken by the Commissioner; Anti-discrimination training provided to government authorities, including effectiveness (2012-January 2014) http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=455115&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (24 June 2013) *ALB104457.E - Albania: Situation and treatment of sexual minorities, including legislation, state protection and support services (2011-June 2013)* http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=455115&pls=1

International Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans and Intersex Association (ILGA) (May 2015) Annual Review of the Human Rights Situation of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans and Intersex People in Europe 2015

http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/90_1431408788 ilga-europe-2015-05-full-annual-review-2015.pdf

International Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans and Intersex Association (undated) *Law in Albania* http://ilga.org/country/albania/law/

Minority Rights Group International (2007) World Directory of Minorities and Indigenous Peoples - Albania: Overview http://www.refworld.org/docid/4954cdfe1a.html

Open Society Institute (April 2010) *Pathways to Progress? The European Union and Roma Inclusion in the Western Balkans* http://www.refworld.org/docid/4cbd386a2.html

United Kingdom Home Office (14 November 2014) Country Information and Guidance - Albania: Minority ethnic groups http://www.refworld.org/docid/550c270f4.html

United Kingdom Home Office (13 October 2014) Country Information and Guidance - Albania: Sexual orientation and gender identity http://www.refworld.org/docid/543bc2394.html

7. Religion/Cults

Australia Refugee Review Tribunal (8 October 2009) Albania: 1. Are Roman Catholics subjected to ill-treatment in Albania? 2. Are supporters of the Christian Democratic Party subjected to ill-treatment in Albania? 3. Are the authorities in Albania able and willing to provide protection to all citizens of

Albania, irrespective of religion or political opinion? 4. Do ethnic Italian Albanians have access to permanent residence in Italy? http://www.refworld.org/docid/4f40dc5d2.html

Australia Refugee Review Tribunal (9 July 2010) Albania: 1. Please search for information on Greece in relation to whether a person cannot be baptised Orthodox if they are illegally in Greece. 2. Please provide information generally about the Orthodox Church in Albania including, if possible, details about the order of the church service. 3. Please search for information as to whether the Orthodox Church has a presence in Tirana. 4. Question deleted. 5. Please provide information on which Orthodox Churches are in the Trikala prefecture of Greece and their location. 6. Question deleted. http://www.refworld.org/docid/4f40db3f2.html

BalkanInsight (17 December 2015) *Uncontrolled Mosques Proliferate in Albania*

http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/state-slams-albanian-muslim-over-uncontrolled-mosques-12-17-2015

United States Department of State (14 October 2015) 2014 Report on International Religious Freedom – Albania http://www.refworld.org/docid/562105df81.html

8. Political

Australian Refugee Review Tribunal (16 January 2012) Albania: 1. Was there a local government election in Bushat in 2007? Or in 2006? Or in both years? 3. Please provide information about Zef Gjoni, Arjan Hajti, and Zef Hila. 4. Would a person who was a PDK supporter be at risk of harm from (a) the Albanian government; or (b) Democratic Party supporters? http://www.unhcr.org/refworld/docid/5033b6bc60.html

Balkan Insight (27 September 2010) *Key Political Parties in Albania* http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/who-is-who-political-parties-in-albania

CIA (4 December 2015) Chiefs of State and Cabinet Members of Foreign Governments – Albania

https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/world-leaders-1/AL.html

International Crisis Group (20 May 2011) The Dangers of Albania's Disputed Election

http://www.crisisgroup.org/en/regions/europe/balkans/albania/op-eds/the-dangers-of-albanias-disputed-election.aspx

Organisation for Security and Co-operation in Europe (OSCE) (19 December 2011) On the Electoral Law and the Electoral Practice of Albania http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1788_1324990485_86424.pdf

Radio Free Europe/Radio Liberty (8 December 2015) Albanian opposition takes to streets, demands government resign

http://www.rferl.org/content/albania-opposition-protests-government-resign/27414580.html

Radio Free Europe/Radio Liberty (22 June 2015) Albania's leftist majority ahead in local elections

http://www.refworld.org/docid/55b5f40911.html

Radio Free Europe/Radio Liberty (10 October 2012) Albania Receives EU Candidate Status, With Conditions

http://www.ecoi.net/local_link/228634/336713_en.html

Radio Free Europe/Radio Liberty (11 June 2012) Albanian Parliament Elects President At Fourth Attempt

http://www.rferl.org/content/albania-elects-president/24611131.html

Radio Free Europe/Radio Liberty (8 December 2015) Albanian opposition takes to streets, demands government resign

http://www.rferl.org/content/albania-opposition-protests-government-resign/27414580.html

9. State Protection (For State Protection of Particular Groups, see the relevant section)

Council of Europe - Commissioner for Human Rights (16 January 2014) Report by Nils Muižnieks, Council of Europe Commissioner for Human Rights, following his visit to Albania, from 23 to 27 September 2013 [CommDH(2014)1]

http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1226_1390300219_com-instranet1.pdf

10. Government/Civil Society/Legal Systems

Council of Europe - Group of States Against Corruption (15 April 2016) Fourth Evaluation Reound; Corruption prevention in respect of members of parliament, judges and prosecutors; Compliance Report Albania [GrecoRC4 (2016)6]

http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1226_1460957810_grecorc4-2016-6-albania-en.pdf

Council of Europe (January 2013) European Committee of Social Rights Conclusions 2012 (ALBANIA)

http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1226_1359465606_albania2012-en.pdf

Human Rights Watch (26 January 2011) Albania: Independent Inquiry Needed Into Protester Deaths

http://www.hrw.org/news/2011/01/26/albania-independent-inquiry-needed-protester-deaths

International Trade Union Confederation (6 June 2013) 2013 Annual Survey of Violations of Trade Union Rights – Albania

11. Press/Media/Freedom of Expression

Balkan Insight (3 December 2015) Self-Censorship Rampant in Albanian Media, Study Says

http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/self-censorship-rampant-in-the-albanian-media-birn-study-finds-12-02-2015

Committee to Protect Journalists (20 March 2011) *CPJ concerned about Fatullayev's safety, calls for his release* http://cpi.org/2011/03/cpj-concerned-about-fatullayevs-safety-calls-for-h.php

Committee to Protect Journalists (16 February 2010) *Attacks on the Press 2009: Europe and Central Asia Developments* http://cpj.org/2010/02/attacks-on-the-press-2009-europe-and-central-asia.php

Freedom House (1 September 2015) *Freedom of the Press 2015 - Albania* http://www.refworld.org/docid/55e970b5e.html

IREX (2016) *Media Sustainability Index 2016 - Albania* https://www.irex.org/sites/default/files/u105/EE MSI 2016 Albania.pdf

Organization for Security and Co-operation in Europe (OSCE) (5 June 2015) OSCE Representative condemns attacks on journalists in Albania http://www.osce.org/fom/162556

Reporters Without Borders (10 May 2012) *Public television prevented from covering Tirana street demo*http://en.rsf.org/albanie-public-television-prevented-from-10-05-2010,37437.html

12. Women/Children/Family

Amnesty International (20 May 2010) In Search of Shelter: Leaving Social Care in Albania

http://www.refworld.org/docid/4c7e82472.html

Amnesty International (20 May 2010) *Memorandum to the Albanian Government: Orphans and Other Children Deprived of Parental Care* http://www.refworld.org/docid/4c7e7eea2.html

Amnesty International (25 March 2010) *Albanian women deserve justice* http://www.refworld.org/docid/4bb056d32.html

The Guardian (UK) (17 October 2015) Surge in Albanian child slaves trafficked to Britain

http://www.theguardian.com/world/2015/oct/17/albanian-trafficked-child-slaves-surge

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (10 September 2015) Albania: Statistics on blood feuds; state protection and support services available to those affected by blood feuds, including whether individuals have been prosecuted for blood feud-related crimes (2010-2015) ALB105255.E http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=456093&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (13 August 2015) Albania: Forced marriages of women, including those who are already married; state protection and resources provided to women who try to avoid a marriage imposed on them (2010-June 2015) ALB105216.E http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=456040&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (30 April 2014) *ALB104859.E – Albania: Domestic violence, including legislation, state protection and support services available to victims (2011-April 2014)* http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=455275&pls=1

INSTAT (November 2013) Domestic Violence in Albania National population-based Survey 2013

http://www.instat.gov.al/media/225815/domestic_violence_in_albania_2013.pdf

United States Department of Labor (30 September 2015) 2014 Findings on the Worst Forms of Child Labor - Albania http://www.refworld.org/docid/560e3e1a0.html

Institute for War and Peace Reporting (30 September 2011) South Caucasus: Selective Abortion Means Fewer Girls Born

http://iwpr.net/report-news/south-caucasus-selective-abortion-means-fewer-girls-born

United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF) (23 July 2015) *Child Notice Albania* http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/90_1438754232_unicef-child-notice-albania-201507.pdf

United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF) (3 October 2008) *Executive Director promotes the rights of Roma children in Albania* http://www.unicef.org/infobycountry/albania_45839.html

13. Prisons/Detention/Torture/Slavery

BBC News (10 December 1999) *Albania abolishes death penalty* http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/europe/558690.stm

Council of Europe: Committee for the Prevention of Torture (3 March 2016) Report to the Albanian Government on the visit to Albania carried out by the

European Committee for the Prevention of Torture and Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment (CPT) from 4 to 14 February 2014 http://www.refworld.org/docid/56e0210d4.html

Council of Europe: Committee for the Prevention of Torture (17 March 2016) Report to the Albanian Government on the visit to Albania carried out by the European Committee for the Prevention of Torture and Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment (CPT) from 30 January to 1 February 2011 [CPT/Inf (2016)11]

http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1226_1458634107_2016-11-inf-eng.pdf

Institute for Criminal Policy Research (Undated) *World Prison Brief – Albania* http://www.prisonstudies.org/country/albania

Organization for Security and Co-operation in Europe (6 September 2013)

Report on Conditions in Albanian Prisons and Recommendations for Reform

http://www.osce.org/albania/104571?download=true

14. Crime/Corruption

Balkan Insight (25 October 2012) *Albania Judges Admit Corruption and Bribes* http://www.balkaninsight.com/en/article/albania-judges-admit-corruption-and-bribes

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (15 September 2015) Albania: The Albanian State Police (ASP), including its structure and locations; police corruption; police misconduct; procedures to submit a complaint against police and responsiveness to complaints (2011-2015) ALB105256.E http://www.irb-

cisr.gc.ca/Eng/ResRec/RirRdi/Pages/index.aspx?doc=456094&pls=1

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (5 October 2011) Albania: The police force, including its structure and location; police corruption; police misconduct; procedures to submit a complaint against police and responsiveness to complaints

http://www.refworld.org/docid/4f5f1fb92.html

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (8 October 2010) ALB103570.E – Albania: Means by which reconciliation groups begin working on a case; records kept by such groups to document their work; steps normally taken by groups to resolve blood feuds; success rates of reconciliation committees; reasons why groups abandon their resolution efforts; whether attestation letters about blood feuds can be purchased; status of the law on mediation and its effectiveness in resolving blood feuds http://www.refworld.org/docid/4dd10f5f2.html

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (22 January 2008) *ALB102748.E* Albania: Whether Albanians who have lived abroad and return to Albania are targeted by criminal elements in Albanian society because of a perception of their affluence

http://www.refworld.org/docid/485ba84da.html

OSAC (8 May 2015) Albania 2015 Crime and Safety Report https://www.osac.gov/pages/ContentReportDetails.aspx?cid=17616

United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime (UNODC) (17 May 2011) Corruption in the Western Balkans: Bribery as Experienced by the Population http://www.unodc.org/documents/data-and-analysis/statistics/corruption/Western_balkans_corruption_report_2011_web.p df

15. Education

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (16 June 2014) Albania: Situation of Roma, including access to education, employment, housing and social services; treatment of Roma by society and authorities (2011-June 2014) http://www.refworld.org/docid/53b13bfb4.html

United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF) (Undated) *Education in Albania – Country Profile*

http://www.unicef.org/ceecis/Albania.pdf

United Nations (Undated) *Increased and more equitable access to quality basic services: Education – Albania* http://www.un.org.al/subindex.php?fage=details&id=14&mnu=15

16. Health

Immigration and Refugee Board of Canada (20 May 2009) *Albania: Whether health officials at hospitals and clinics are required to report cases of trauma, accidents and injuries to the police; procedures for reporting these cases* http://www.refworld.org/docid/4b20f030c.html

Republic of Albania (Ministry of Health) (2 April 2009) *Health in Albania National Background Report April 2009* http://wbc-

inco.net/attach/0_NationaLBackgroundReportonHealthforAlbania.pdf

17. Asylum seekers/IDPs/Internal Flight

UN Human Rights Council (10 April 2012) Report of the Special Rapporteur on the human rights of migrants, François Crépeau – Mission to Albania http://www.ecoi.net/file_upload/1930_1339060894_a-hrc-20-24-add1-en.pdf

UN High Commissioner for Refugees (April 2012) *IDPs in Host Families and Host Communities: Assistance for hosting arrangements* http://www.refworld.org/docid/4fe8732c2.html

United States Department of State (27 July 2015) 2015 Trafficking in Persons Report – Albania http://www.refworld.org/docid/55b73c1ec.html